
 
Please contact Rachel Graves on 01270 686473 
E-Mail: rachel.graves@cheshireeast.gov.uk with any apologies or requests for further 

information or to give notice of a question to be asked by a member of the public  

 
Staffing Committee 

 

Agenda 
 

Date: Thursday 21st October 2010 
Time: 2.00 pm 
Venue: Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, Middlewich Road, 

Sandbach CW11 1HZ 
 
The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press. Part 
2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons indicated on 
the agenda and at the foot of each report. 
 
PART 1 – MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT 
 
1. Apologies for Absence   
 
2. Declarations of Interest   
 
 To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any personal and/or 

prejudicial interests in any item on the agenda  
 

3. Public Speaking Time/Open Session   
 
 In accordance with Procedure Rules Nos.11 and 35 a total period of 10 minutes is 

allocated for members of the public to address the Committee on any matter relevant 
to the work of the Committee. 
  
Individual members of the public may speak for up to 5 minutes but the Chairman will 
decide how the period of time allocated for public speaking will be apportioned where 
there are a number of speakers. 
  
Members of the public should provide 3 clear working days notice, in writing, if they 
wish to ask a question at the meeting, in order for an informed answer to be given. It 
is not required to give notice of the intention to make use of public speaking provision, 
however, as a matter of courtesy, a period of 24 hours notice is encouraged. 
 

 
 

Public Document Pack



4. Minutes of Previous meeting  (Pages 1 - 4) 
 
 To approve the minutes of the meetings held on 20 July 2010. 

 
5. HR Update  (Pages 5 - 12) 
 
 To consider a report on the progress with Human Resource issues. 

 
6. Exclusion of the Press and Public   
 
 The reports relating to the remaining items on the agenda have been withheld from 

public circulation and deposit pursuant to Section 100(B)(2) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 on the grounds that the matters may be determined with the press and 
public excluded.  
  
The Committee may decide that the press and public be excluded from the meeting 
during consideration of the following items pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Paragraph 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972 and public interest would not be served in publishing the 
information. 
 

PART 2 - MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITHOUT THE PUBLIC AND PRESS 
PRESENT 
 
7. Confidential Minutes  (Pages 13 - 16) 
 
 To approve the confidential minutes of the meeting held on 20 July 2010. 

 
8. Items Requested by the Trade Unions   
 
 • Connexions 

• Asset Transfer 
• Harmonisation 

 
 



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Staffing Committee 
held on Tuesday, 20th July, 2010 at Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, 

Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ 
 

PRESENT 
 
Councillor D Topping (Chairman) 
Councillor R Domleo (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillors W Fitzgerald, R Fletcher, T Beard and A Knowles 

 
Unions 
Olga Kokkinis - UNISON 
Craig Nicholson – UNISON 
Kevin Yoxall – UNISON 
Chris Millington – GMB 
Kevin Bradbury – GMB 
Babak Bassirian – NUT Soulbury 
Anton Woolford – AEP Soulbury 
 
Officers 
Erika Wenzel, Chief Executive 
Paul Bradshaw, Head of HR & Organisational Development 
Julie Davies, HR Strategy Policy Manager 
Amanda Rudham, HR Policy Manager 
Suzanne Antrobus, Senior Corporate Solicitor 
 

 
1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies were received from Councillors D Flude, F Keegan and  
B Moran; Phil Mason, UNISON; Lesley Hall, UNISON; Bob Blundell, 
UNISON and Colin Priest, GMB.  
 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION  
 
There were no members of the public present. 
 

4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 8 April 2010 be approved as a 
correct record. 

Agenda Item 4Page 1



 
5 HR UPDATE  

 
The Head of Human Resource & Organisational Development, aided by 
the HR Strategy Policy Manager and HR Policy Manager presented a 
report which provided a general update on Human Resource issues, 
including Health & Safety, Organisational Development, Workforce 
Development and HR Policy and Reward. 
 
Twenty six health and safety policy and guidance documents were now 
available on the CEntranet.  A further 31 guidance notes had been 
developed specifically for the Children’s and Families service.  The 
Committee was asked to approve the General Health and Safety Policy.  
This Policy was reviewed annually and specified general responsibilities of 
employees at all levels of the organisation and Elected Members.  The HR 
Strategy Policy Manager reported that the Members Champion for Health 
and Safety would be included in Section 2.1.1 - Council Members.  The 
Policy had been discussed at the Corporate Health & Safety Forum on 3 
June 2010 as part of the consultation process.     
 
Good progress was being made in recruiting young people into Cheshire 
East Council.  Over 30 apprenticeship placements had been established 
across all services to date for the corporate scheme with 16 apprentices 
currently active within the authority.  An inaugural Cheshire East Council 
Apprenticeship and Employer event had taken place on 30 June 2010, 
which had been attended by over 150 school leavers, local businesses 
and training providers. 
 
The Council had signed up towards the North West Employers 
Organisations Skills Award.  Through this councils in the North West could 
achieve recognition for demonstrating a strategic approach to workforce 
development.  Achieving the Award fulfilled commitment to the Skills 
Pledge and brought Skills for Life activity alongside the full range of skills 
in one review process.  An Action Plan would be developed with the aim of 
achieving the Award within 18 months. 
 
The Council had a large number of staff who remained on the terms and 
conditions of their Legacy Authorities as they had TUPE transferred into 
Cheshire East Council.  In order to resolve equal pay issues and develop a 
modern set of terms and conditions for employment for Cheshire East , a 
Member Steering Group, a Project Board and a joint trade union working 
group had been established. 
 
Consultation was taking place with the trade unions to transfer 
approximately 330 weekly paid employees to monthly pay in October 
2010.  Transitions arrangements would be put in place to help those 
employees affected in the form of pay advances and advice on budgeting 
and financial management. 
 
RESOLVED:   

Page 2



 
(1) the report be noted. 
 
(2) the General Health and Safety Policy be approved. 
 

6 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following items pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the 
Local Government Act 1972 on the grounds that they involved the 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 4 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 and public interest would 
not be served in publishing the information. 
 

7 CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the confidential minutes of the meeting held on 8 April 2010 be 
approved as a correct record. 
 
 
 
 

The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and concluded at 2.55 pm 
 

Councillor D Topping (Chairman) 
 

 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO: Staffing Committee 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date of Meeting: 

 
21 October 2010 

Report of: Paul Bradshaw, Head of Human Resources & Organisational 
Development 

Subject/Title: HR Update 
___________________________________ 
 
 
1.0 Report Summary 
 
1.1 To update the Committee on progress with Human Resource issues. 
 
2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 To note the report. 
 
2.2 To approve the Corporate Accident / Incident Reporting Policy and Investigation 

Procedure. 
 
3.0 Reasons for Recommendations 
 
3.1 To ensure Members are kept up to date with HR developments. 
 
4.0 Wards Affected 
 
4.1 No specific wards affected. 
 
5.0 Local Ward Members  
 
5.1 Not applicable. 
 
6.0 Policy Implications including - Climate change 
                                                                   - Health 
 
6.1 No significant implications. 
 
7.0 Financial Implications  
 
7.1 No direct implications arising from this report. 
 
8.0 Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor) 
 
8.1 No direct implications arising from this report. 
 
9.0 Risk Management  
 
10.1 No significant risks identified. 

Agenda Item 5Page 5



10.0 Background and Options 
 
10.1 HEALTH & SAFETY 
 
10.1.1      COMMUNICATING WITH EMPLOYEES 
 
10.1.2 Production of Health & Safety Update Newsletters has continued with the    

circulation of Newsletter 7 - which focused on risk assessments and the 
corporate audit programme, and Newsletter 8 - which concentrated 
on health and safety training arrangements, corporate noise programme 
and the new electronic accident reporting system (PRIME).     

 
10.1.3      Future editions are likely to include articles addressing: 
  

• Manual Handling • Violence & Aggression 

• Control of Substances 
Hazardous to Health 

• Health & Safety Audits 

• Slips, Trips & Falls  • Cold weather working 

  
10.1.4      PRIME - ELECTRONIC ACCIDENT REPORTING SYSTEM 
  
10.1.5  The new electronic accident reporting system, PRIME, was officially 

launched on 15.09.10 and is a corporate wide electronic system for the 
recording of all accidents, incidents and near misses.  An updated accident 
/ incident form has been produced to complement the new system and is 
accessible via the Corporate Health and Safety Team home page on 
CEntranet.   

 
10.1.6 Specific training has been delivered on the new PRIME software. This 

demonstrates how accident data can be entered locally and how 
information can be retrieved from the system.  Training continues over the 
next 6 months and details are available on the Corporate Health & Safety 
Service home page on CEntranet.   

 
http://centranet.ourcheshire.cccusers.com/healthandsafety/Pages/default.aspx 

 
10.1.7 ENGAGING WITH THE HEALTH & SAFETY EXECUTIVE   
 
10.1.8 Cheshire East Council’s (CEC’s) new HSE Inspector (and her Manager) 

visited 22 September 2010, as planned. The Inspectors focused on Waste 
& Recycling collection issues – in line with a national initiative (‘Waste & 
Recycling Intervention Strategy 2010 - 2013’) which is taking place across 
both public and private sectors.  NB: It should be noted that the 
Intervention Strategy is only focusing on collection issues in the Waste & 
Recycling Service. 

 
10.1.9 The main purpose of this initial meeting was for the Inspectors to gauge an 

understanding of CEC’s structure and of the Waste & Recycling Service.  
Arrangements were made to support a second visit (4 & 5 November 2010) 

Page 6



- which will include visiting 2 Depots and a specific opportunity for Trade 
Union Representatives to meet with the Inspectors. 

 
10.1.10 Following this visit, the Inspectors will complete the HSE Proforma to 

gauge CEC’s compliance (benchmarking performance against the national 
position) and will produce an Action Plan for completion by Waste 
Managers.  The Intervention Strategy will conclude with a review visit in 
approximately twelve months time. 

 
10.1.11 DEVELOPMENT OF THE CORPORATE NOISE PROGRAMME  
 
10.1.12 Noise assessments have taken place in the Waste & Recycling service 

and readings indicate that some levels of exposure to noise are above the 
minimal action level.  This means that the Council must implement 
technical and organisational control measures to reduce the noise to the 
lowest level that is reasonably practicable. 

 
10.1.13 To achieve this, a time-scaled Action Plan has been developed jointly with 

the Corporate Health & Safety Team and Waste Managers, which was 
discussed with unions on 19 August 2010, to gain their cooperation and 
approval.  The Action Plan includes taking further and more targeted 
measurements, improvements to the stillages into which the glass is 
collected, readings comparing older with newer vehicles, health 
surveillance of Operatives and an investigation into the use of suitable PPE 
(hearing defenders). 

 
10.1.14 DEVELOPMENT OF THE HAND ARM VIBRATION PROGRAMME  
 
10.1.15 The Hand Arm Vibration programme is a continuing and ongoing process 

with responsibility resting with the relevant Service Managers.  The 
Corporate Health & Safety Team will monitor progress both informally by 
observation and formally as part of the forthcoming Health & Safety Audit 
Programme. 

 
10.1.16 DRAFT POLICY REVIEW FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
101.1.17 Amendments to the current Corporate Accident / Incident Reporting Policy 

and Investigation Procedure have been discussed with Trade Union 
Representatives (1 October 2010) and at the Corporate Health & Safety 
Forum (7 October 2010).  The document is due to conclude the 
consultation process at this meeting. 

 
10.1.18 Significant amendments include: 
 

• A revision of the document in order to accommodate the successful 
corporate-wide implementation of the PRIME electronic accident reporting 
system (as detailed at 2.0 above). 

 
• A revision of the accident investigation checklist and inclusion of an 

example of a structured accident investigation report, in order to assist 
Managers in meeting their responsibilities when conducting an 
investigation. 

Page 7



 
10.1.19 Approval of the Corporate Accident / Incident Reporting Policy and 

Investigation Procedure is requested.   
 
10.1.20 ACCIDENT AND INCIDENT DATA (Quarter 1: 1 April – 30 June 2010)   
 
10.1.21 In the first quarter 133 accident / incident reports were registered with the 

Corporate Health and Safety Team, of which 42 were RIDDOR* reportable 
to the Health & Safety Executive. (*Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and 
Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 1995). 

 
 

 No. of Incidents No. of RIDDORs 

2009 - 2010 

Quarter 1 371  59 

Quarter 2 119  62 

Quarter 3 138  78 

Quarter 4 135  77 

Totals  763 276 

2010 - 2011 

Quarter 1 133  42 

 
10.1.22 The highest numbers of incidents received and recorded so far are in the 

People Directorate.  This is not unexpected due to the high number of 
public who use the services provided by this Directorate and the activities 
undertaken - particularly in Schools.    

 
10.1.23 RIDDOR incidents shown by Directorate and type are shown below. 
 
 
 PEOPLE PLACES  P&C* TOTAL 

RIDDOR nos. 37 5 0 42 

Highest cause:  
Falls on Level 

14 3 0 17 

2nd highest cause: 
Sporting Activity 

8 0 0   8 

Joint 3rd highest cause: 
Contact Injury 

5 0 0   5 

Joint 3rd highest cause: 
Struck By 

5 0 0   5 

 
*P&C – Performance & Capacity 
 
10.2 ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
 
10.2.1.     EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION SCHEME 

Page 8



10.2.2 The second cycle of the aspire4excellence employee recognition scheme 
was run during September. The aim of the scheme is to recognise 
individuals and teams for role modelling the ASPIRE values, and through 
this making a significant impact on a customer or colleague. Almost 70 
nominations were received during the recognition period and 21 individual 
and four team award winners were selected by the recognition panel. 

 
10.2.3  INVESTORS IN PEOPLE 
 
10.2.4 As part of the process for CEC to retain Investors in People (IIP) 

recognition, a series of informal health-checks will be undertaken from 
October through to February. The aim of the health checks is to obtain a 
snapshot of how effectively people management and development 
practices are being embedded, ahead of the formal corporate assessment 
in May of 2011. Services that will take part in the informal health checks 
are as follows: 

 
    October – Finance and Health and Wellbeing 
    November - Streetscape and Planning and Policy (Places 
    January – Care4ce (Adults) 
    February – Catering and Access (Childrens and Families) 

 
10.2.5  Results will be shared with the appropriate management teams so that best   

practice can be highlighted and required actions taken. 
 
10.2.6   SKILLS AWARD 
 
10.2.7 To reinforce the Councils commitment to developing its workforce and   

achieving the IIP standard, CEC has recently signed up to work towards the 
North West Employers Organisations Skills Award. Through this councils in 
the North West of England can achieve recognition for demonstrating a 
strategic approach to workforce development. Achieving the award fulfils 
commitments to the Skills Pledge and brings Skills for Life activity alongside 
the full range of skills activity in one review process. 

10.2.8 A Skills Award action group has now been established involving both officers 
and union learning representatives from across the Council. An initial 
desktop assessment against the award criteria has been undertaken which 
indicated that CEC was already some way to meeting these requirements. 
To ensure that all areas are met and strengthened 5 initial work-streams 
have been identified and are currently being mobilised: 

• Developing the role of Union Learning reps 

• Skills for Life strategic positioning 

• CEC Skills Strategy 

• Learning evaluation and impact 

• Widening access to learning and partnerships 

Page 9



10.2.9 ORACLE LEARNING MANAGEMENT AND PERFORMANCE      
MANAGEMENT  

10.2.10 Cheshire East (CEC) and Cheshire West and Chester (CWAC) have made 
the joint strategic decision to continue with and update Oracle as the fully 
supported platform for both Authorities and its shared services. 

 
10.2.11 The Release 12 (R12) programme has been established to deliver the 

agreed upgrade along with targeted activity to relaunch and optimise core 
Oracle processes. The decision to proceed with the configuration of two new 
HR modules Oracle Learning Management (OLM) and Oracle Performance 
Management (OPM) was agreed and included in the scope of the overall 
Oracle Programme.  

 
10.2.13 OLM and OPM are fully integrated with Oracle HR and together provide a 
 single source of employee data held in one system. Both modules provide 

administrator access, employee and manager self serve and reporting 
functionality as summarised below: 

 
• OPM - is a Council wide team and employee performance development 

system that supports, administers and reports the whole performance 
management cycle from agreeing performance and development plans, 
competency assessment, reviewing progress, assessing and rating 
performance. 

 
• OLM - is a Council wide learning management system that supports, 

administers and reports the learning cycle from employees finding the 
development they need, booking, managing and evaluating on-line or 
classroom based learning. 

 
10.2.14 There are no current systems for employee performance management and a 

number of local and unconnected systems or solutions (some unfit for 
purpose) to support learning management. A summary of benefits is outlined 
below: 

 
• Integrated technology – one system and one source of employee data 

which is fully integrated; 
• Quality of information – improved, joined up and accessible information to 

inform decisions and inspections; 
• Improved efficiency – standardised process flows, improved visibility and 

management control; 
• Enhanced performance – increased employee ownership and focus. 

 
10.2.15 A joint CEC and CWAC project team has been established to take forward 

this work and to develop an implementation strategy in order to populate 
content and manage appropriate pilots and roll out initially to non-schools 
staff. Roll out is expected to take place during 2011/12. 

 

Page 10



10.3 HR DELIVERY  
 
10.3.1 SUPPORTING WORKFORCE CHANGE  
 
10.3.2 The HR Delivery Team has been working closely with line managers to 

realign restructuring with the requirement to make budget savings whilst still 
delivering effective services.  As a consequence of this restructuring, the 
Team have also been involved with the process and management of 
voluntary redundancies as well as actively searching for redeployment 
opportunities for those affected employees who wish to remain working for 
the Council.  To date, this has resulted in 161 staff being redeployed and a 
further 18 are currently in trial periods.   

 
10.3.3 ACADEMIES 
 
10.3.4 Three Cheshire East schools have become academies and the HR Delivery 

Team have been heavily involved in advising on the implications of this for 
the Council – advising on immediate issues such as TUPE as well as 
establishing the availability for purchase of services provided to schools 
under the Schools Business Support Agreement.  This will be an ongoing 
workstream with eleven other Cheshire East schools having also expressed 
an interest in converting to academy status in the future.   

 
10.3.5 ORACLE 
 
10.3.6 The Team have also been involved in updating the Oracle system to 

streamline processes, improve absence management, reduce the risk of 
non-compliance and reduce management time on transactional activities.  
The latest version of Oracle will also introduce new facilities for recording 
and monitoring learning activities and performance management.   

 
10.4 HR POLICY AND REWARD 
 
10.4.1 HARMONISATION/EQUAL PAY 
 
10.4.2 Work is continuing to address equal pay issues and develop a modern set of 

terms and conditions of employment for Cheshire East. 
 
10.4.3  Joint consultation sessions with the trade unions have commenced to 

discuss key areas of the existing pay structure that will be included in the 
review including car allowances, premium payments and overtime payments.  
Consultation will continue over the coming months 

 
10.4.4 Regular updates as the work progresses will be provided to the Project 

Board, Member Steering Group, Staffing Committee and Cabinet. 
 
10.4.5 POLICY DEVELOPMENT  
 
10.4.6 Work has continued to develop new harmonised HR policies and procedures 

for Cheshire East Council with ongoing consultation with the trade unions. 
 

Page 11



10.4.7 The policies and procedures will be supplemented by ‘toolkits’ for managers.  
These will aim to support managers in implementing the policies and 
procedures and will comprise guidance notes, frequently asked questions 
and model letters.   

 
11.0 Access to Information  
 
112.1 The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting 

the report writer: 
 
 Name: Tracey White 
 Designation: Senior HR Officer 
 Tel No: 01270 371418 
 Email: Tracey.white@cheshireeast.gov.uk 

Page 12



Agenda Item 7Page 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of Previous meeting
	5 HR Update
	7 Confidential Minutes

